
BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING 
September 23, 2010 6:30PM  

 

1 

 

Quorum noted 
 
6:30 PM:  Meeting called to order by Chairman Fernald. 
 
Roll Call:   All present. 
 
Pledge of Allegiance recited 
 
Moment of Silence observed 
 
Approval of Minutes of Previous Meeting(s) 
 
6:32 PM Motion by Ms. O’Donoghue, seconded by Ms. Place, to approve the minutes of 

September 9, 2010, as amended. 
   VOTE 
    4-0 
    Chair concurs 

 
Public Comment: 

 
6:33 PM Lysette Gould Nash, 326 Beech Road, said that she has lived there for 25 years 

proposed that the Town look into get some sort of a grant or stimulus money to 
put in a walking or bike path along Beech Road, hopefully, starting at the Rt. 101 
intersection and coming down in to Town but, at least, to the light. She discussed 
that people drive extremely fast on that road, traffic has been increasing, and 
lately, the biggest offenders have been big trucks. She also discussed that many 
residents walk that road, including herself everyday and that, if she walks on the 
correct side of the road with the telephone poles, there is nowhere for her to step 
off to get away from traffic that comes too close so what she ends up doing is 
walking on the opposite side of the road so that she can move off onto people’s 
property. She also added that, in the wintertime, there is nowhere to walk out 
there because of the plowing and snow banks and added danger for the kids 
getting on and off the school buses. She recognized that money is tight for the 
Town but that they might be able to apply for grants or stimulus money based on 
safety or health issues and there are so many reasons it would be good for the 
Town. 

 
Mr. Fernald asked if that side of Beech Road was the responsibility of the Town 
or the State. 
 
Mr. Blanchette said that he did not know, off-hand, and that he would have to 
check. 
 
Mr. Moulton said that he had been in touch with SMRPC and that they were 
going to look at bike paths, etc., for the Town. He added that he could put this on 
the list to discuss with them and, if that part of Beech Road is the Town’s 
responsibility, then they could add that to their list, as there is grant funding for 
that. 
 
Ms. O’Donoghue said that this would be great for the section of Beech Road 
going into Town, as they only thing there when trying to get off the road is a 
ditch. 
 
Mr. Moynahan said that he couldn’t agree more that there is a need there. 
 
Mr. Fernald asked Mr. Moulton to proceed with looking into this. 

 
 
 
 
 



BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING 
September 23, 2010 6:30PM (continued) 

 

2 

Department Head/Committee Reports 
  
6:38 PM Ms. Muzeroll-Roy said that the Enterprise Account continues to dwindle and is 

the lowest it has ever been, with $3,928 in it, which means that gives her about 
four weeks left of payroll and nothing else. She explained that she was here to see 
if they could borrow from Kids Play, which currently has $70,000. She said that, 
in the beginning when she was speaking with Norma and Judy, it was suggested 
they borrow $5,000, which would give her about 30-60 days  to get their 
registration and program numbers back up but she doesn’t think that is going to be 
enough. She said that she was hoping they could borrow $10,000 from Kids Play 
until registration numbers and such increase. She added that she didn’t know if 
the Board wanted to set up a timeline to replace that money back but, if they don’t 
get some money in there, then they would lose the entire department. 
 
Ms. O’Donoghue said that this came up last fall and she was wondering whether 
there were any possible solutions to this problem that were mentioned then that 
never happened. 
 
Ms. Muzeroll-Roy said that she did a bunch of grant research and they did not 
qualify for any of them at the time and most of them did not have to do with 
staffing, specifically, or programs but were matching grants. She commented that 
there are more matching grants out there right now than just giving money. She 
explained that one of the biggest problems she was facing right now is that their 
brochure went out about three weeks late, as the post office did not send them out, 
and all their programs start this week, which they have zero registrations for and 
is a huge factor. She said that, now that school has started, they are sending flyers 
and doing promotions on the bulletin boards to get the word out but that brochure 
pulls in a lot of registrations. 
 
Ms. O’Donoghue asked if there wasn’t some question about having to cut back on 
staff. 
 
Ms. Muzeroll-Roy agreed and said that that would be something that they would 
have to take a more serious look at this year than they did last year, unfortunately. 
 
Ms. O’Donoghue agreed it was unfortunate and that no one wanted to do that but 
this has become a continual problem. 
 
Mr. Moynahan asked if they didn’t appropriate senior funding that was going to 
help offset some of the shortfalls they were seeing. 
 
Ms. Muzeroll-Roy said that they did and that the senior funds are in a separate 
account that pays for that part of it. 
 
Mr. Moynahan clarified that the issues with the Enterprise Account last year were 
not just senior-related. 
 
Ms. Muzeroll-Roy said no, that it was a big chunk of it because that was still a 
salary coming out of the Enterprise Account but program numbers have been 
going up and down for the last few years and they are now faced with less 
Enterprise money. 
 
Mr. Fernald clarified that they still have that money to continue to have the senior 
programs. 
 
Ms. Muzeroll-Roy said yes. 
 
Ms. Place asked if that was just for salaries, that $10,000. 
 
Ms. Muzeroll-Roy said that that was to support salaries and to make short trips at 
a lower cost so seniors could afford to go. 
 



BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING 
September 23, 2010 6:30PM (continued) 

 

3 

Ms. Place asked if, now that the flyers are out, that that will bring in revenue. 
 
Ms. Muzeroll-Roy agreed it would. She explained that, right after Labor Day is 
usually when that brochure goes out so that parents have enough time to actually 
look at the brochure, breath a little bit, then sign their kids up. She added that the 
brochure not going out until this week and some not having gotten it, yet, has hurt 
quite a bit. She further said that they have had to cancel all their programs for this 
week and postpone them for the next two weeks. 
 
Ms. Place asked if the post office gave a reason why the brochures did not go out. 
 
Ms. Muzeroll-Roy said that apparently it is at the discretion of each postman or 
post woman when to put them out, at their leisure, so they sit in the trucks and 
they decide when they want to put them in the mailboxes. 
 
Mr. Fernald asked if taking $10,000 from the Kids Play Account would affect that 
program. 
 
Ms. Muzeroll-Roy said no and that they had a really good summer, increasing 
staff this year, with the possibility of doing that again next year. She added that 
their before- and after-school programs have taken off, so they are doing very 
well with the Kids Play with $70,000. 
 
Mr. Moynahan moved, second by Ms. Place, to allow Ms. Muzeroll-Roy to 
borrow $10,000 from the Kids Play Account and to deposit it into the Enterprise 
Account. 
 
There was discussion regarding a timeline for paying back the account. 
 
Mr. Moynahan amended his motion to add “to be paid back to the Kids Play 
Account by January 31, 2011.” 

VOTE 
    4-0 
    Chair concurs 

 
Mr. Moulton referred back to the request he had made at the last meeting for the 
Loader tire purchase. He said that he did follow the Board’s wished and contacted 
GPCOG, that they were actually the high bidder and, with the Board’s approval, 
he would like to move forward with the purchase of the four tires in preparation 
for winter. 
 
Mr. Moynahan moved, second by Ms. O’Donoghue, to allow Mr. Moulton to 
expend $4,050 for tires under the Vehicle Repair Budget to Stratham Tire. 

VOTE 
    4-0 
    Chair concurs 

 
Ms. O’Donoghue asked if that included the Road Salt 
 
Mr. Moulton said yes, that that was part of the whole package. He discussed 
wanting to add calcium chloride back in order to save on road salt during extreme 
weather conditions. He said that he checked with GPCOG and they did not have a 
bid for calcium chloride. He added that, with vendors he has used in the past, he 
did get a unit price of $1.06 per gallon and he estimates that 1,500 gallons would 
probably do for the winter and he was requesting approval from the Board for this 
expenditure. 
 
Mr. Moynahan clarified that, as the department head for snow decisions, he has a 
line item for snow and winter maintenance, so this may not even need Board 
approval. 
 



BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING 
September 23, 2010 6:30PM (continued) 

 

4 

Mr. Blanchette agreed that Mr. Moulton had $2,000 in that line item for 
expenditures. 
 

6:47 PM Mr. Moulton discussed his concern for the roll-off container that is currently 
being used (to haul pressure-treated wood for disposal) at the Transfer Station, 
which is in extremely poor condition. He said that he has done some research and 
found a couple of used containers for $1,800 each. He added that he knows it is an 
unexpected expenditure but his concern is that, if the Town continues to use this 
container, then it could put the Town at a bigger liability. He said that, if this let 
go on Route 236 for instance, then they would have a major issue. Mr. Moulton 
said that he was asking the Board’s approval to move forward with the research 
and to get the Board’s comments on this. 
 
It was the consensus of the Board to have Mr. Moulton moved forward on this 
issue. 
 
Mr. Moynahan said that Mr. Moulton mentioned Transfer Station recycling 
revenue and asked if he would be increasing. 
 
Mr. Moulton said no. He added that he believes there was an appropriation to 
carry over some funding from last year for some of the repairs to be done, which 
still has some money remaining, and he was hoping that, with recycling of the 
cans that are in poor condition, they could bring in some revenue to offset that 
cost and use minimal money out of that account to purchase at least one container, 
maybe two, which would give him the chance to do the repairs to some of the 
other containers that need repairs. He said that he feels this is a very good 
opportunity to move forward with this, as it allows them some flexibility and it 
gives them a significant reduction in cost. He added that, for what they are used 
for, this would actually work best, if they are in as good a condition as they 
appear to be. 
 
Mr. Moulton said that he has done catch basin inspections. He added that they 
have a series of catch basins that are included in a closed drainage system. He 
explained that they were looking to utilize Kittery’s equipment to clean the catch 
basins for $258 per day and he is anticipating one or two days versus going 
through GPCOG at $105 per hour. He said that sharing community services 
would save the Town some significant money, so they will move forward with 
this to get into compliance with the storm-water requirements. 
 
Mr. Moulton updated the Board on Mr. Burnell’s property. He said that he went 
out and met with Mr. Burnell, identified his concerns, Mr. Burnell gave him his 
thought s on what he would like to see done and he told Mr. Burnell that he would 
do an estimate, come up with a possible plan and research the deeded ROW to 
make sure of compliance with the State. He added that Mr. Burnell was fine with 
that and he told Mr. Burnell that he would keep him informed as this moved 
forward. 
 
Mr. Moulton said that he has been approached by a resident on Alvin Lane who is 
looking for assistance to purchase a sign. He added that he knew it was a private 
road but he thought the Board might be able to help. 
 
Mr. Fernald asked for the reason for the request. 
 
Mr. Moulton explained it was the speed at which the vehicles travelled up the 
road, that they are older residents and have a concern getting their mail, etc. and, 
on a couple of occasions there has been a near-miss. He said that they called and 
he told them he would bring it before the Board, where it was a private road and 
have a discussion. 
 
Mr. Fernald asked what type of sign were they requesting. He added that he 
knows that they indicated that they don’t hear as well as they used to, etc. 
 



BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING 
September 23, 2010 6:30PM (continued) 

 

5 

Mr. Moulton said that he suggested in his memo a sign that said “slow pedestrian” 
or “caution” or “hearing impaired”, something that would assist them. 
 
Mr. Fernald said that Alvin Lane is off a Town road and asked if there was any 
way that a sign could be put on Town property. 
 
Mr. Moulton said that he thought it could be put on a Town ROW, right at the 
beginning of Alvin Way. 
 
Mr. Fernald asked if Mr. Moulton had any idea what the cost might be. 
 
Mr. Moulton said that, in general, he thought it would be between $40 and $60, as 
a rough estimate. He added that it really is short money for a concerns of the 
residents. 
 
Mr. Fernald said that the Board wants to do as much as they can but they have to 
be careful because it is a private lane and not Town property. He asked for the 
pleasure of the Board. 
 
Mr. Moynahan said that he thought that was the right approach to put it in the 
ROW to remove any perceived issue. 
 
Mr. McPherson agreed and added that there was a need to use best judgment and 
do the best one can do. 
 
It was the consensus of the Board to let Mr. Moulton move forward with this. 
 

6:55 PM Mr. Moulton briefly discussed having a show-and-tell on “single-stream 
recycling” from Ecomaine for the Board’s information. 
 
Mr. Fernald said that while Mr. Moulton was present and to get him home, he 
would like to take the agenda out of order and go to #9 at this time, concerning 
the CLD Sewer Report BOS Special Meeting.  
 
The Board agreed. 
 

6:58 PM 
#9 TO : Board of Selectmen 
 FROM : Eliot Sewer Committee 
 REF : Meeting to discuss CLD’s Sewer Report 

 
Mr. Fernald said that there was a letter from John Murphy of the Sewer 
Committee and, as the Board members noticed in their folders, they all had a big 
manual that they will all read carefully and bring questions to the special meeting. 
Addressing Mr. Moulton, he said that this was an important meeting about the 
sewer and the TIF, etc., and being scheduled for September 30, next Thursday, at 
4 PM. He asked if all the members could attend this meeting or did they need to 
change the time. 
 
All Board members agreed that they could attend the scheduled meeting. 
 
Mr. Fernald said that the Board would like Mr. Moulton and Mr. Sylvester to 
attend that meeting. 
 
Mr. Moulton and Mr. Sylvester agreed. 
Mr. Fernald also said that there was a request from Mr. Murphy to have Ms. 
Lemire record that meeting, which would be a cost to the Board, and asked what 
was the pleasure of the Board. 
 
Mr. Blanchette said that they needed to make sure she could make it to that 
meeting. 
 



BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING 
September 23, 2010 6:30PM (continued) 

 

6 

Ms. Lemire said that she could attend that meeting. 
 
It was the consensus of the Board to have Ms. Lemire attend and record the 
special meeting to hear the CLD review/update. 
 
Mr. Blanchette discussed the ECSD building regarding shutting it down for the 
winter if it was not going to be used during the winter completely…winterize, 
shut down the plumbing, shut off the heat and possibly the electricity. 
 
The Board agreed to winterize the ECSD building by consensus. 
 
Ms. Place said that the TV Committee met last night in Executive Session with 
Mr. Sommers regarding the contract and will, hopefully, have something soon. 

 
Old Business (Action List): 

 
7:00 PM  

A. Job Review Form for Department Heads – Mr. Moynahan 
 
Mr. Fernald said that Mr. Moynahan has presented the Board with the work he 
has done at the last meeting and asked if there were any comments or questions 
from the Board. 
 
Ms. Place said that she liked it. 
 
Mr. Fernald asked if the Board should send this to the department heads for their 
review. 
 
Ms. O’Donoghue agreed that they could but she felt they needed to move on this 
fairly quickly, as it has been long time since this Board has done some of these 
and they are overdue for job reviews, in general. She added that she liked this 
form because it has room for employees to contribute and it isn’t just the Board 
sitting in judgment. 
 
Mr. Moynahan said that he didn’t think he would send this to department heads 
unless the department heads use this same format for their employees – this is this 
Board’s model. 
 

7:04 PM Ms. O’Donoghue moved, second by Ms. Place, to accept the Job Review Form 
for use by the Board of Selectmen. 

VOTE 
    4-0 
    Chair concurs 

 
B. Firearms Ordinance – Mr. Fernald 
 
The Board agreed this could be removed from the Action List. 
 

VOTE 
    4-0 
    Chair concurs 
 
 

 
C. Solid Waste Alternatives – Solid Waste Committee 
 
There was no update tonight. 
 
Ms. O’Donoghue commented that it would be nice to have this committee at the 
Special BOS Meeting to review the CLD Report. 
 



BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING 
September 23, 2010 6:30PM (continued) 

 

7 

Mr. Blanchette agreed to notify the SWC that the BOS requested they be in 
attendance for the CLD review. 
 
D. Wildbrook Lane 
 
There was no update tonight. 
 
E. Representation on Kittery Sewer  
 
Mr. Blanchette said that that committee was meeting directly after the Board’s 
Special Meeting on September 30. 
 
F. Sewer Contract Committee – Mr. Moynahan, Ms. O’Donoghue, Mr. Murphy, 
Mr. Marchese and Mr. Blanchette 
 
Mr. Blanchette said that this committee would be meeting that night, as well. 
 
G. Skateboard Park Noise – Mr. McPherson and Mr. Fernald 
 
Mr. McPherson said that there was no report of noise. 
 
H. Grant-writing Committee 
 
Mr. Fernald said that the majority of the department heads do grant writing for 
their departments and asked if this was something the Board needed to keep on 
the Action List. 
 
The Board agreed that they discussed this at the last meeting and decided to take 
this item off the list. 
 
Ms. O’Donoghue clarified that she would like to have some names or places or 
resources they could go to to find out what grants are out there. 
 
I.PACE Program – A regional meeting is being set up. The State would rather 
come down for a multi-town meeting. More details later.  
 
Mr. Blanchette said that a regional meeting is being set up and, although the exact 
date is not known, he believes it will be in early October. 
 

New Business (Correspondence List): 
 
7:07 PM 
#1 TO : Board of Selectmen 
 FROM : Dan Blanchette 
 REF : 2nd Reading of Selectmen’s Consent Agreement Policy 

 
Mr. Fernald said that they had a correspondence back from their attorney and he 
suggested adding some wording. 
 
Ms. O’Donoghue said that it doesn’t change anything but it does clarify it better. 
 
Mr. Moynahan read new section F) from the attorney’s memo, saying that, with 
the words “…, or to waive any of the procedures of this policy…”, the policy 
becomes a moot point with that addition. He said that this Board is looking for 
direction and some criteria as to what people need in order to get a C.A. He added 
that, in his opinion, those words say that it doesn’t matter what the proposed 
policy is because the Selectmen could bypass that at any time and that people may 
come in under the wrong motives. 
 
Mr. Murphy agreed that he had the same feeling about that particular phrase as 
Mr. Moynahan – if the Board was to have a policy, then have the policy and stick 
to it, as this wording could be used to discard on a whim or some particular 



BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING 
September 23, 2010 6:30PM (continued) 

 

8 

person’s vote on the Board. He said that he understood that there might be very 
complicated cases that they could not foresee but, to have the language so 
explicit, as if it were normal, he did not agree with. Mr. Murphy said that he very 
much liked Mr. Vaniotis’ wording in the first paragraph addition, as it is much 
clearer and more realistic. He suggested that the Board still retain the references 
to the cases, as they would have examples to go by for this and future Boards. 
 
Mr. Fernald commented that it is a Board’s decision and there needs to be some 
confidence in the people elected to do the right thing. 
 

7:12 PM Ms. Shapleigh commented that the State has allowed these C.A.’s and the State 
assumes the town boards are making other intelligent decisions and could do the 
same with this, as well. She said that, when one starts writing a policy, then one is 
setting down rules and this whole policy is to grant relief to people who can’t 
comply with the rules. She added that she thinks it is up to the Board to take each 
case and hear it without these rules that say one can’t do this or can’t do that but 
might be able to do this. She also said that not many C.A.’s have been done and 
that she thinks they should leave it without the policy. 

 
Ms. O’Donoghue said that she thinks a policy is in order only because of 
consistency over time, as this Board changes every year. She added that, after 
another review, she agreed with Mr. Moynahan on paragraph F in the attorney’s 
memo but, otherwise, she thinks Mr. Vaniotis has added some good comments. 
She said that, if they keep in the references to the cases and the appendices, she 
thinks they would be all right. 
 

7:14 PM Ms. Place said the authority of the Board of Selectmen is what it comes down to, 
as it is this Board that decides who they enter into a C.A. with and who they will 
not enter into a C.A. with. She added that it was her understanding that the policy 
was just a guideline to get direction on decision-making, not a path they follow. 
 
Mr. McPherson asked, if the Board signs a C.A., whatever the issue is, is that the 
end of it or could someone open it up again. 
 
Mr. Blanchette said that, supposedly, that would be the end of it because it gets 
recorded at the Registry of Deeds and is a final determination for that specific 
issue. 
 
Mr. Murphy agreed that was what Mr. Vaniotis’ last paragraph addition was 
trying to clarify, in that there was no right to appeal that the Board was considered 
the final step in any C.A., and could not be changed or taken back, even by the 
Board. He did asked if the decision could be reconsidered at the next meeting. 
 
Mr. Blanchette that it could, unless it was signed and recorded. 
 
Mr. Moynahan said that he thought this was important, no matter what it is called. 
He added that this tells residents what the steps are in the process that needs to 
happen and prevents this Board from overstepping its boundaries and taking on 
certain actions that belong to other boards. He commented that that was a big 
concern that this Board had two years ago when this first came up. Mr. Moynahan 
said that this resolves a lot of those question marks that they had. He also agreed 
with Ms. Place that it was a guideline, not set in stone and gives the Board a lot of 
leeway, as it stands, but gives steps to be taking so that this Board does not 
undermine the other Town boards. 
 
Mr. Fernald agreed with Mr. Moynahan and that he respected Mr. Vaniotis’ input 
on this subject, as he has been with the Town and has seen a lot of C.A.’s go by 
the board. He suggested that, if Board members disagree with sections of the 
memo, then maybe they should get more clarification from Mr. Vaniotis. 
 
Mr. Moynahan said that he would just caution that, that is great language to have 
in there, but if someone comes in, like the gentleman who came in two meetings 



BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING 
September 23, 2010 6:30PM (continued) 

 

9 

ago wanting to try to sell a piece of property – Time was of the essence for him. 
He added that that gentleman did not go through the process so this Board could 
have given a C.A. to him, right then and there but they failed the system because 
they would have entered in before the gentleman sought the proper result. Mr. 
Moynahan said that that was his concern, adding that he understood that the 
Board would try to do the right thing but he was concerned with that language. He 
added that maybe Mr. Vaniotis could help them understand why he suggested that 
language be added. 
 
Mr. Blanchette said that they could certainly get clarification. He added that his 
suspicion is that that is there because, whether it is there or not, the Board has that 
authority, so the Board might as well be up front and put it in there. He also added 
that, because it is the Board’s guideline, the Board could vote to waive it at 
anytime, anyway. He explained that, with parliamentary rules, if it is one’s 
adopted policy, then one could vote to waive any part of it. 
 
Mr. Moynahan clarified that the Board could waive any of their policies at any 
time. 
 
Mr. Blanchette said yes – if the Board adopts a policy, they could waive it 
because they were the ones adopting it. He added that the only things they could 
not waive were things like ordinances because they are voted on by the public, 
except those things included in the ordinance language that would allow waivers. 
He reiterated that he thinks Mr. Vaniotis was putting in writing what the Board 
could already do. 
 

7:20 PM Ms. Place said that, in reading it over again, this doesn’t say anything other than 
the authority they already have. She reiterated that this is just a guideline for the 
Board and that the cases would be helpful to see how things were decided before. 
 
Mr. Fernald said that, because of the changes they could put this back as a 1st 
Reading, have it come up at the next meeting, and that would give members time 
to think about what Mr. Vaniotis has indicated and make some decisions on that 
and make some decisions on it at the next meeting. 
 
The Board agreed by consensus. 

 
7:22 PM   
#2 TO : Board of Selectmen 
 FROM : Dan Blanchette 

REF : 1st Reading on amending Personnel Policy – Annual Review of Motor 
Vehicle Records 
 
Ms. O’Donoghue said that she liked the addition of the sentences in Section 6 
regarding what they discussed at the last meeting about the Fire Department. 
 
Mr. Moynahan said that he thought this draft was great. 
 
There were no other comments. 
 
Mr. Fernald said that this was the first reading and that this would be placed on 
the next meeting agenda as a second reading. 
 
Mr. McPherson asked what would happen for a New Hampshire resident. 
 
Mr. Blanchette said that, in all probability, they could not get motor vehicle 
records from them. 
 
Mr. Hirst clarified that they could as an employer by sending a fee to Concord and 
they would send them to the Town. 

 
#3 TO : Board of Selectmen 



BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING 
September 23, 2010 6:30PM (continued) 

 

10 

 FROM : Building Committee 
 REF : Town of Eliot Building Committee Mission Statement 

 
Ms. O’Donoghue said that she had one suggested change and that was to add 
“prior to any final decisions” to the end of the fifth paragraph. 
 
No one else had comments. 
 
Mr. Fernald suggested making that change and sending it back to the committee 
for their input. 
 
Ms. O’Donoghue commented that it was an excellent statement, that it covers 
what they asked the Building Committee (BC) to do and that they were projecting 
20-30 years into the future. 
 
Mr. Fernald said that they did find all the layouts of the Town that Ms. LaBella 
did for the Town several years ago and that the BC is looking into areas for the 
ECSD in lieu of any buildings coming up in the near future. 
. 

7:25 PM 
#4 TO : Board of Selectmen 
 FROM : Roberta Atkinson 
 REF : Resignation from Conservation Commission 
 

Ms. O’Donoghue moved, second by Mr. Moynahan, to accept, with extreme 
regret, the resignation of Roberta Atkinson from the Eliot Conservation 
Commission. 

VOTE 
    4-0 
    Chair concurs 

 
Ms. O’Donoghue said that Ms. Atkinson has done a wonderful job for the 
Conservation Commission and she will be greatly missed. 
 

#5 TO : Board of Selectmen 
FROM: County Commissioners, County of York 
REF : Thank You Letter 
 
This was a thank-you from the County Commissioners for the early payment of 
Eliot’s County taxes. 
 

#6 TO : Board of Selectmen 
 FROM : Comcast 

REF : HD Digital Set-Top Box 
 
This was informational. 

 
7:29 PM   
#7 TO : Board of Selectmen 
 FROM : National Council on Compensation Insurance, Inc. 
 REF : Rating 

 
Mr. Hirst explained that, once the worker’s compensation premium is set, then 
they apply an experience factor based on the experience of the client involved – 
four years ago, three years ago, two years ago and intentionally skipping the most 
recent year. He said that, in this case, the Town picked up 5 claims totaling 
$46,000 that were in 2008 and that impacted the Town pretty badly. He said that 
this means that, on top of the premium that has been calculated, they got a 6% 
surcharge. He added that this is worth noting that this is a preliminary number 
because they have not done the audit for the payroll for the year ending December 
31st and the claims are not mature yet. He commented that it may be that, by the 
end of the year, he might be able to get them to drop some of the reserves and, if 



BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING 
September 23, 2010 6:30PM (continued) 

 

11 

that happens, then the 1.06 might move down a bit. Mr. Hirst said that he thought 
it was worth pointing out that the MMA tells them that they have had no claims 
from Eliot recently that represent any apparent deviation from normal standards 
of safety and nothing which they could criticize the Town for by poor 
management, for example, so he thinks that is a very positive step. 
 
Mr. Fernald agreed. 

    VOTE 
     4-0 
                Chair concurs 

 
#8 TO : Board of Selectmen 
 FROM : Roland Fernald 
 REF : Job Review Form for Dept. Heads 

 
This was covered under the Action Item List portion of the meeting. 
 

#10 TO  : Board of Selectmen 
 FROM: Wendy Rawski, Town Clerk 
REF  : Warrant for November 2, 2010 
 
Mr. Blanchette said that this was notification to the Town to meet at Marshwood 
Middle Scholl to vote on Articles One through Four on November 2, 2010. 
 

7:32PM 
#11 TO : Board of Selectmen 

FROM: Wendy Rawski, Town Clerk 
REF : Appointment of Kate Pelletier as Interim CEO 
 
Mr. Blanchette explained that, evidently when Ms. Rawski gave the Board an 
appointment paper, there was some feedback to her that the Board wanted 
something different so she has changed it to Interim Code Enforcement Officer 
and wanted to know if that met the Board’s approval. 
 
Mr. Moynahan asked if they had explored anything regarding the CEO position 
with other towns. 
 
Mr. Blanchette said that they had and that he had some things to discuss with the 
Board in Executive Session. 
 
At this time, the Board signed the document appointing Ms. Pelletier as Interim 
CEO. 
 

7:35 PM 
#12 TO  : Board of Selectmen 

 FROM: Wendy Rawski, Town Clerk 
REF  : Appointment of Peter Dennett as Warden for November 2, 2010 Special 
Town Meeting 
 
Mr. McPherson moved, second by Ms. O’Donoghue, to appoint J. Peter Dennett 
as Warden for the upcoming State General Election to be held on Tuesday, 
November 2, 2010. 

     VOTE 
      4-0 

                Chair concurs 
7:37 PM   
Selectmen’s Report: 

 
Ms. O’Donoghue discussed that the towns of Kennebunk, Kennebunkport, 
Scarborough and Portsmouth have hired a firm called Code Red, which is similar 
to but more accurate than Reverse 911. She explained that it is a method of 
reaching everyone in Town and can reach 6,000 people in about 15 minutes if 



BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING 
September 23, 2010 6:30PM (continued) 

 

12 

there was a disaster of some kind, an evacuation needed. She added that they can 
also pinpoint people who live in a particular area, for instance, if there were a fire 
and the road was blocked. She said that she thinks they may be somewhat pricey 
but they could find out. She passed out information for the Board members to 
review. 
 
Ms. O’Donoghue discussed safety issues for Town employees. She said that, if 
someone comes in to the Town Hall, for instance, and causes a problem is there 
an emergency panic button that could be pushed that would immediately reach the 
Police Station. She said that one system she found was an alarm system that 
included panic buttons and the overall price was just over $2,000, with a $21 per 
month fee. She added that she thought that was pretty reasonable to assure the 
safety of the Town employees. Ms. O’Donoghue said that Ms. Rawski has 
mentioned this issue a couple of times and that, periodically, there are people who 
come in to the clerk’s office that are unhappy and it becomes an uncomfortable 
situation. 
 
Mr. Fernald suggested they make sure all the Board members have a copy of this 
information and put it on the agenda for their next meeting. 
 
Mr. Blanchette agreed. 
 
There was discussion on where they were in the proposed alarm system process 
and that monies had been appropriated for this at Town Meeting. 
 

7:40 PM Mr. Hirst said that, last December, he got quotes for all this stuff and what is 
involved is an upgrade to the current fire alarm system plus an intrusion system, 
which would entail contacts on the three doors and motion detection through 
several areas in the Town Hall. He added that it also includes monitoring of the 
sprinkler water flow but they wouldn’t need that and could back off on some of 
the price. He said that, if the Board wanted to go forward with some variation of 
what has been quoted, then he would get the two alarm system guys to come back 
and he has a consultant in Town that, for nothing, would go through all this and 
give them advice. He added that they could then come to the Board with a more 
comprehensive proposal of what would be suggested be done and what it would 
cost. 
 
The Board agreed by consensus for Mr. Hirst go forward with his suggestions. 
 
Mr. McPherson discussed that, if someone had a key to the building, then they 
could wander pretty much anywhere they wanted. He commented that people 
using the building for meetings should be restricted to the big meeting room and 
have no access to the rest of the building. 
 
Mr. Blanchette clarified that, other than the Selectmen, people using the building 
do not have access to the offices. 
 
Mr. Moynahan said that he thinks this all stemmed from a resident coming in to 
this building and acting threateningly about a month ago– that it has nothing to do 
with board or committee members. 
 
Ms. Place asked if there was ever a specific point where someone walking into the 
building could not go beyond that point because, as it is now, people can just walk 
in to offices in the building. 
 
Mr. Blanchette said that they have never had that. 
 
Ms. Place said that maybe people walking into the building should be announced. 
 
Ms. O’Donoghue suggested they get the information they need to decide what 
should be done, right away and in the future. 

  



BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING 
September 23, 2010 6:30PM (continued) 

 

13 

Other Business as Needed 
 

There was no other business. 
 

7:46 PM 
Executive Session 

 
Ms. Place moved, second by Mr. McPherson to go into Executive Session as 
allowed by 1 M.R.S.A. 405.6.A “Discussion or consideration of the 
employment…” – Personnel Matter. 

    VOTE 
     4-0 
                Chair concurs 
7:52 PM  Out of executive session. 
 
7:54 PM  Mr. Moynahan moved, second by Ms. O’Donoghue, to proceed with the hiring 

process for the position of CEO/LPI. 
    VOTE 
     4-0 
                Chair concurs 

Ms. Place and Mr. Moynahan volunteered to be on the hiring committee.   
 

Adjourn 
 
 There was a motion and second to adjourn the meeting at 8:00 PM.  
    VOTE 
     4-0 
                Chair concurs 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________  ______________________________ 
DATE     Roberta Place, Secretary 

 
 

 


